#### MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

### MONDAY, JANUARY 7, 1991

### 21ST BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES

### STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT

A regular monthly meeting of the 21st Board of Representatives of the City of Stamford was held on Monday, January 7, 1991, in the Legislative Chambers of the Board of Representative in the Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard, Stamford, Connecticut.

The meeting was called to order at 8:55 p.m. by President Sandra Goldstein, after both political parties had met in Caucus.

INVOCATION was given by Rep. Garry Clemmons D-3.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG was led by President Sandra Goldstein.

<u>ROLL CALL</u> was taken by Clerk of the Board Annie M. Summerville. There were 34 members present and six absent. Absent were Judith Evanko (excused), Patricia McGrath, Frank Mollo (excused), Elaine Mitchell (excused), John Hogan, and David Jachimczyk (excused).

The Chair declared a quorum.

<u>MACHINE TEST VOTE</u>: Test votes were taken by President Sandra Goldstein. The machine was in good working order.

### MOMENTS OF SILENCE:

For the late Emile L. Remling submitted by Rep. Philip R. Stork, 15th District. "Emile L. Remling passed away on December 6, 1990 at the age of 90. Mrs. Remling was the mother of former Belltown Fire Chief, Daniel Remling Jr. She is survived, in addition to her son, by one daughter, three grandsons, and one great-granddaughter. Sincerest sympathy to her family."

For the late Emile L. Remling submitted by Rep. Joseph Lovallo, 15th District. "Sincerest sympathy extended to all the family."

For the late Jules DeRosa, uncle of Rep. Stanley Esposito, submitted by Reps. Stanley Esposito, 11th District, Sandra Goldstein, 16th District and Michael D. Larobina, 16th District. "Sincerest sympathy extended to all members of the family."

For the late Joseph Chiappetta submitted by Rep. Nicholas Pavia, 10th District. "I extend my deepest sympathy to all members of the family."

For the late Victor W. Burton, Jr. submitted by Rep. John R. Zelinsky, Jr., llth District. "Mr. Burton was a neighbor and friend. He was 44 years old. He is survived by his wife, Alexandra, one son, Victor William III, one daughter, Jennifer and one sister, Bonnie. Our sympathy to his family."

For the late Joseph E. Abbazia of Darien submitted by Rep. John R. Zelinsky, Jr., 11th District. "Mr. Abbazia was a friend and former business associate. He is survived by his wife, Louise, a son, Dr. Michael Abbazia, three daughters, Corinne, Mildred, and JoAnn, a sister, Yolanda, 19 grandchildren and 10 great-grandchildren. Our sympathy to his family."

### STANDING COMMITTEES

2.

STEERING COMMITTEE: Chairperson Sandra Goldstein

REPORT.

Descent of the mostimut

<u>MR. BOCCUZZI</u> Moved to waive the reading of the Steering Committee report. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

The Steering Committee met on Wednesday, December 13, 1990, in the Democratic Caucus Room of the Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard, after a Special Board meeting. The meeting was called to order at 9:35 p.m. by Chairwoman Sandra Goldstein who declared a quorum.

Present at the meeting:		
Sandra Goldstein, Chairwoman	John J. Boccuzzi	David Blum
Audrey Maihock	Robert DeLuca	John Zimmerman
Scott Morris	Stanley Esposito	Philip Stork
Gerald Rybnick	David Jachimczyk	David Martin
Annie Summerville	Carmen Domonkos	Ellen Mellis
Frank Mollo	Thomas Pia	John Hogan
Maria Nakian	Mildred Perillo	John Roman, WSTC
Mary Lou Rinaldi	James Rubino	Anne Kachaluba
John Zelinsky	Ruth Powers	

<u>APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered off the Agenda was the name of Sydney Kweskin for the Board of Tax Review: Mr. Kweskin, a Republican was to replace a Democrat. Ordered Held in Steering was Ellen Joy Fienga for the Human Rights Commission.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were 12 of the 13 items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered Held was one item on the Tentative Steering Agenda and two items that appeared on the Addenda: Review of Internal Audit re E911, Transfer of funds between departments as a result of 911 bid waivers and Review of handling of year end funds by departments used by 911 bid waivers.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were seven of the ll items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda and one item that appeared on the Addenda. Ordered on the Pending Agenda were two items: Amending Resolution 1917 re written policy concerning personal use of city-owned vehicles and proposed ordinance re issuance of citations, etc. Ordered off the Agenda were two items: Submission of monthly reports re bids, etc. and Commissioner of Finance to sign bid waivers.

<u>PERSONNEL COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were two of the five items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered Held in Steering was a resolution re General Assembly to enact reforms to binding arbitration statutes. Ordered on the Pending Agenda were two items: Report on reimbursement of unauthorized salary increases for non-union classified employees and resolution re further action on repayment of unauthorized salary increases. MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING - MONDAY, JANUARY 7, 1991
 3.

### STEERING COMMITTEE REPORT: (continued)

<u>PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE</u> - Placed on the Pending Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda: Approval of road acceptance for Heming Way-Stone Fence Lane.

<u>PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER COMMITTEE</u> - Of the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda, one was Held in Steering: The Matter of Flooding on Halloween Boulevard and the other item was placed on the Pending Agenda: The proposed ordinance requiring emissions testing of Stamford's incinerator.

<u>HEALTH & PROTECTION COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda was one of the three items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered Held in Steering was the proposed ordinance re Microwave transmitters. Ordered off the Agenda was why was the 911 Center located above ground rather than below ground level?

<u>PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

EDUCATION. WELFARE & GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Pending Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda: Matter of privatization of Dial-A-Ride program.

HOUSE COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON</u> - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>LABOR RELATIONS COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered Held in Steering was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda; Guidelines for union contracts. Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Addenda; Addendum to agreement between Board of Education and Stamford Education Association.

**<u>RESOLUTIONS</u>** - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>ADJOURNMENT</u> - There being no further business to come before the Steering Committee, upon a motion made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 10:40 p.m.

> Sandra Goldstein, Chairwoman Steering Committee

4. REGULAR MEETING AGENDA FOR MONDAY, JANUARY 7, 1991 4.

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE - Mildred Perillo, Chairwoman - No report.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Richard Lyons, Chairman

<u>MR. LYONS</u> said the Fiscal Committee met on Wednesday, January 2, 1991 at 7:00 p.m. Mr. Lyons said that due to a business commitment, he was unable to attend the meeting; the meeting was Chaired by Mary Lou Rinaldi.

1. <u>\$ 200,000.00</u> - STAMFORD COLISEUM AUTHORITY - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR CODE 735-70 CULTURAL CENTER additional appropriation for first of five annual \$200,000 payments toward half the cost of the Palace Theatre Acquisition by the Stamford Center for the Arts. \$2,000,000 bargain purchase opportunity arose 12/89 due to estate liquidation. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani in fiscal 1990/91 Capital Budget. Planning Board approved. Board of Finance approved 10/11/90. To be financed by bonds. Held in Comnmittee 11/7/90. Returned to Committee 12/3/90.

Above also referred to COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE.

### HELD IN COMMITTEE

The Secondary Committee report was waived.

<u>MR. LYONS</u> stated that on item one, the Chairman and other members of the Committee had discussions with Corporation Counsel. The Committee expressed that a letter of agreement or contract was needed before the item would be considered. Mr. Lyons said that Corporation Counsel stated that he would get back to the Board with an agreement or contract.

- STAMFORD EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES SYSTEM CONTRACT FUNDING REQUEST:
  (a) Additional appropriation CODE 485.5501 EMS CONTRACTED SERVICES -\$333,000
  - (b) Interdepartmental Transfer: FROM: CODE 470.4380 STAMFORD AMBULANCE CORPS. \$126,480 CODE 470.4385 STAMFORD EMS FOUNDATION 154.724 \$281,204
     TO: CODE 485.5502 EMS CONTRACTED SERVICES 281.204 \$614,204
     Per E.M.S. System Contract and Funding Request submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 10/1/90 and request of 11/2/90. Board of Finance approved 11/8/90. Held in Committee 12/3/90. Returned to Committee at Special Meeting 12/12/90.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

### HELD IN COMMITTEE

The Health and Protection Committee concurred.

MR. LYONS said that the Committee met with Corporation Counsel to outline the points raised at the Special meeting telling Corporation Counsel that the Board was looking for a revision in the basic contract and the revisions have to come to the Board before any further discussions is held. Mr. Lyons stated that a draft form of the contract will be coming to the Board this month.

3. STATUS REPORT ON BOARD OF EDUCATION'S MOVE TO THE GOVERNMENT CENTER. Requested by Sandra Goldstein, D-16, 11/14/90. Held in Committee 12/3/90.

MR. LYONS stated that if funds are approved for the move, the necessary events to move will commence as swiftly as possible.

At this point, Mr. Lyons turned the Agenda over to Rep. Mary Lou Rinaldi.

MS. RINALDI noted for the record that Fiscal met on January 2, 1991. Attending the meeting were Committee members Rinaldi, Zimmerman, Rybnick, Powers, Pavia, Martin and Hogan. Also attending was Carmen Domonkos, Peter Nanos and David Blum.

Ms. Rinaldi placed items 9, 10, 11 and 12 on the Consent Agenda. All Secondary Committees concurred or waived the Secondary Committee report.

4. \$ 500,000.00 -DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1990/91 FOR PROJECT CODE 301.087 BOARD OF EDUCATION RELOCATION - additional appropriation to relocate the Board of Education offices from Hillandale Avenue to the Government Center. To be funded by bonds. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/3/90. Planning Board approved 12/11/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

Above also referred to PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWER COMMITTEE.

MS, RINALDI said the Committee voted unanimously for approval. She Moved for approval. Seconded by the Public Works and Sewer Committee.

MR. LOVALLO asked if Ms. Rinaldi had an updated, itemized breakout of the actual capital expenditure for the detailed project summary?

<u>MS, RINALDI</u> said she could provide Mr. Lovallo with the Fiscal backup material.

MR. LOVALLO asked if this was consistent with the initial outlay for \$655,000 detailed in the project summary?

MS. RINALDI stated that the appropriation was reduced to \$500,000 by the Board of Finance.

MR. LYONS stated that reductions would have to be made in the details in the project summary. Mr. Lyons said he spoke with the Commissioner of Public Works and was told that the bulk of the \$500,000 was in the renovations for the committee meeting room and for the moving of the main frame computers. Mr. Lyons said that probably if more funds are needed, they will come back to the Board requesting same.

5.

<u>MRS. MAIHOCK</u> stated that in these times of fiscal restraints, it was not prudent or urgent to spend \$500,000 to move the Board of Education to the Government Center. She said the Board of Education has functioned very well for many years at the Hillandale address.

<u>MR. BOCCUZZI</u> said that at the time of the budget, the Board recommended a letter to the Mayor, that we would entertain a move by the Board of Education to the Government Center. He said certain commitments were made to the Board of Ed and they agreed to the move. Mr. Boccuzzi said to deny this would be a reverse in the Board's position and asked that the Board approve this appropriation.

<u>MRS. MAIHOCK</u> said a lot of things that were a good move in the past, are not a good move in today's climate.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to approve \$500,000 to amend the capital projects budget for the Department of Public Works for the Board of Education relocation. APPROVED by a voice vote with 31 yes and 2 no votes.

5. <u>\$1,000,000,00</u> - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1990/91 FOR PROJECT CODE 301.145 STAMFORD ADULT CENTER ON HILLANDALE AVENUE additional appropriation for creation of Adult Center to accommodate activities and services for senior citizens. To be funded by bonds. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/3/90. Planning Board approved 12/11/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

Above also referred to PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWER COMMITTEE.

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> said the Committee voted unanimously to approve the appropriation and so Moved. Seconded by the Public Works and Sewer Committee.

<u>MRS. MAIHOCK</u> said that in light of the present fiscal situation, that perhaps the project could be postponed until a more fortuitous time.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to appropriate \$1,000,000 to amend the capital projects budget of the Department of Public Works for the adult center. APPROVED by voice vote with three no votes, Mrs. Maihock, Mr. Pia and Mr. Johnson.

6. <u>\$ 750,000,00</u> - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1990/91 FOR PROJECT CODE 301.093 STORAGE BUILDING - additional appropriation for storage building on Magee Avenue for use by city agencies and the Board of Education. To be funded by bonds. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/3/90. Planning Board approved 12/11/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

Above also referred to PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWER COMMITTEE.

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> said the Committee voted unanimously for approval. She said the Board of Finance reduced the request. Ms. Rinaldi Moved for approval. Seconded by the Public Works and Sewer Committee.

<u>MR. DeLUCA</u> Moved to return the item to Committee. Seconded. Mr. DeLuca said the Board of Finance reduced the appropriation by \$145,000 and in the material received from the researcher, Ms. Weller, the figure is \$895,000. Mr. DeLuca stated that Ms. Weller contacted the various construction companies and one company talked about the special design floor slabs, \$275,000; half of what the cost should be. Mr. DeLuca said there were questions about the lighting and air conditioning. He said he thought the project would start at \$750,000 and three-fourths of the way down, another appropriation would be requested for another \$300,000 or \$400,000.

Mr. DeLuca said his reason to return to Committee was to determine how much the total project would cost and to get as much information as possible on the total cost of the project.

<u>MR. BLUM</u> said he favored returning the item to Committee because he thought the \$750,000 was excessive and perhaps, there are other buildings that could be used for storage.

<u>MR. LYONS</u> said it would be a mistake to send the item back to Committee. He said there was a desperate need for storage space for records. He said the records are stored in a number of places throughout the city including the Board of Education renting storage. Mr. Lyons stated whether the cost would be \$895,000 or \$750,000, we should begin to correct the storage problem. Mr. Lyons was against the item going back to Committee.

MR, FEDELE asked if the storage building was to be used for record retention?

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> stated that the building would be used by various city agencies and the Board of Education. The building would not be used just for records; voting machine would be stored there along with other equipment.

<u>MR. FEDELE</u> asked if the city looked into the leasing of warehouse space to accommodate storage needs and if any analysis was done on leasing?

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> stated that from what Commissioner Donahue said, that the storage building was the most cost effective way as the city will do the construction.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to return to Committee, \$750,000 Department of Public Works capital projects for storage building on Magee Avenue. DEFEATED by a vote of 21 opposed and 12 in favor.

<u>MR. BLUM</u> said he was opposed to the \$750,000 for a new storage building when there are numerous empty buildings in the city, namely, a building on Haig Avenue, the old Municipal Building, perhaps the Board of Education building when they move to the Government Center and Burdick School. Mr. Blum said that in the present economic situation, it was time to stop spending.

<u>MR. BOCCUZZI</u> said he was in favor of the appropriation. He said the reason why some of the vacant city buildings cannot be used is because the buildings are not in condition to be used as storage buildings. He said records and other materials cannot be stored in buildings where there is a leak in the roof or water in the basement. Mr. Boccuzzi stated that a new facility would allow the various people that use the Magee Avenue facility to continue there. Mr. Boccuzzi said that there has been much discussion regarding a storage space between Mr. Strat and Mr. Donahue and it was stated that a lot of good equipment will be lost and a central building would solve the problem of storage for a long time.

<u>MR. DeLUCA</u> said that he would vote against the appropriation. He said an analysis as to the costs should be obtained and the cost of leasing. Mr. DeLuca stated there were many vacant buildings that are leasing for \$8 or \$9.00 a square foot. Mr. DeLuca said that the Board of Education has been renting storage space for years and another year or so would not make much difference.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to appropriation \$750,000 to amending the capital projects budget of the Public Works department for a storage building DEFEATED by a vote of 21 yes and 9 no votes with 3 abstentions. (23 votes needed for approval)

<u>MR. LYONS</u> Moved to reconsider item 6; \$750,000 for a storage building. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote for reconsideration. APPROVED by a vote of 20 yes and 13 no votes.

MS. RINALDI Moved to approve \$750,000 for a storage building. Seconded.

MR. BOCCUZZI Moved to return the item to Committee. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote to return to Committee the \$750,000 appropriation request for a storage building. APPROVED by 33 yes vote and no dissenting votes; the Committee was instructed to look into all the matters discussed by the previous speakers.

7. <u>\$ 166.600.00</u> - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - CODE 344.5501 RECYCLING CONTRACTED SERVICES - additional appropriation for contracted services for curbside collection of recyclables. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/3/90. Defeated by Board of Finance 12/13/90

Above also referred to PUBLIC WORKS AND SEWER COMMITTEE.

No action required on item 7; defeated by Board of Finance.

8. <u>\$ 24.506.00</u> - SOCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT - CODE 520-1201 OVERTIME additional appropriation is requested; represents half the annual salary of a caseworker and half the annual salary of a clerk/typist. A more intensive procedure for processing bills has recently been imposed by the State. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 12/3/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

The Secondary Committee report was waived.

MS. RINALDI Moved for approval of item 8. Seconded.

MR. BLUM stated that at the last meeting, \$18,000 was appropriated for a social service worker. He said now there is an appropriation before the Board for overtime for half the annual salary of a caseworker and half the annual salary of a clerk-typist. Mr. Blum asked why was not this appropriation part of the original one that came to the Board last month? Mr. Blum stated that he asked Mr. Mendela of the Social Services Department why that was not done. Mr. Mendela replied to Mr. Blum that a worker was being trained. Mr. Blum spoke to Mr. Mendela concerning a Community Development employee that was laid off regarding the job, and Mr. Mendela's reply to Mr. Blum was that the person had to be trained. Mr. Blum said that now it is told that the new caseworker has to be trained. He said he would vote no on this item because the factual information was not received in the beginning.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> proceeded to a vote. APPROVED by voice vote with five no votes; Ms. Summerville, Mrs. Maihock, Mrs. Perillo, Mr. Blum, and Mr. Clemmons. Mr. Owens abstained.

9. \$ 3,668.02 - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - CODE 559 VARIOUS - TB CONTROL GRANT additional appropriation to bring the city's approved budget in line with the State's. Increase in salaries and benefits due to settlement of nurses' contract. Code 559.1110 salaries \$2,988.00 Code 559.1221 clothing allowance 100.00 Code 559.1210 social security 454.26 Code 559.1310 social security 454.26 Code 559.1300 medical & life 125.76 \$3,668.02 Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/03/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

### APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

10. <u>\$ 16,468.30</u> - POLICE DEPARTMENT -CODE 410.1201 OVERTIME - additional appropriation represents expenses already incurred in account. Reimbursements to the city have been deposited in General Fund. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani 12/3/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

# APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

11. <u>\$</u>	2,152,00 - FAIR RENT COMMISSION - CODE VARIOUS - ad appropriation to cover budget cuts and d	
	obligations.	Souchast
	Code 115.1201 overtime	\$ 500
	Code 115.1220 car allowance	1,250
	Code 115.2740 telephone	150
	Code 115.2930 office supplies & postage	167
	Code 115.2940 conferences & training	85
	the second se	\$2,152
	Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/3/90. approved 12/13/90.	Board of Finance

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

### APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

12. <u>\$ 556.74</u> - STAMFORD YOUTH PLANNING AND COORDINATING AGENCY - CODE 205.7525 DIRECT SERVICES - additional appropriation requested to cover a \$500 donation from Darien United Way and \$56.74 donated by Stamford Hospital. Request by Mayor Thom Serrani, 12/3/90. Board of Finance approved 12/13/90.

### APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

MS. RINALDI Moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> Moved to Suspend the Rules to consider an item not on the Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to Suspend the Rules. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

13. <u>\$ 116.060.00</u> -	DEPARTMENT OF TRAFFIC & PARKING - DIAL-A	-RIDE PROGRAM -				
1000	request for authorization to transfer fr	om Code 118.5501				
	Contracted Services to Code 118.VARIOUS.					
	Code 118.1110 salaries	\$ 93,000				
	Code 118.1201 overtime	1,200				
	Code 118.1220 car allowance	1,210				
	Code 118.2510 maintenance of vehicles	12,500				
	Code 118.2610 maintenance of equipment	750				
	Code 118.2740 telephone	150				
	Code 118.2750 gasoline	5,000				
	Code 118.2923 copying & printing	750				
	Code 118.2930 office supplies	1,500				
		\$116,060				
	Request by Vincent Akhimie, Director of Traffic and					
	Parking, 11/29/90. Board of Finance app	roved				
	12/14/90.					

Above also referred to TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE.

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> stated that this particular Dial-A-Ride program was only funded for a six-months period in anticipation of the privatization of the program. She said that this did not happen, therefore, funds ran out at the end of last year, and in order to fund for the remaining six months, funds must be appropriated.

A motion was made to waive the Secondary Committee report. It was seconded and approved.

<u>MRS. MAIHOCK</u> said it was not clear to her whether the matter of privatization would be taken up after June 30, 1991?

<u>MS. RINALDI</u> stated that the process was ongoing and has been since almost the end of the budget process. She said there were no responses to the request for bid proposals, and now other things are being done to activate proposals.

<u>MR. BLUM</u> said the Dial-A-Ride program was cut by the Mayor from \$197,892 to \$98,000; this went through the Board of Finance and the Board of Representatives. Mr. Blum stated that at that time, the Mayor was thinking about the privatization of Dial-A-Ride and put \$128,367 in the contracted services line of the budget. Mr. Blum said the funding was taken from the Commission on Aging and put into the Transit District.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve \$116,060 for the Dial-A-Ride program. APPROVED by voice vote with one no vote, Mr. Blum.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE - David Martin & Maria Nakian, Co-Chairpersons

<u>MR. MARTIN</u> said the Legislative and Rules Committee met on Thursday, December 20, 1990. Present were Committee members David Martin, Maria Nakian, Ellen Mellis, Carmen Domonkos, James Rubino, Michael Fedele, Michael Larobina, Stanley Esposito and John Zelinsky. Also attending the meeting were Reps. W. Dennis White and John Zimmerman; Richard Robinson, Asst. Corporation Counsel and Mr. Loter from the Board of Ethics.

Mr. Martin placed item 4 on the Consent Agenda.

# LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

 (L&R21.42) REVIEW OF PURCHASING PROCEDURES AND THE BIDDING PROCESS. Requested by Rep. Robert DeLuca, R-14, 8/15/90. Held in Committee 9/10, 10/1, 11/7 and 12/3/90.

# HELD IN COMMITTEE

 (L&R21.44) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR BIDDING PROCESS PURSUANT TO CHARTER SECTION C5-100-4. Submitted by Reps. Sandra Goldstein, D-16, David Martin, D-19 and Maria Nakian, D-20, 8/22/90. Held in Committee 9/10, 10/1, 11/7/90 and 12/3/90.

# HELD IN COMMITTEE

3. (L&R21.49) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 156-13 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES CONCERNING THE POSTING OF SIGNS ON CITY PROPERTY. Submitted by Reps. Ellen Mellis, D-13 and Maria Nakian, D-20, 10/2/90. Held in Committee 11/7 and 12/3/90.

# HELD IN COMMITTEE

4. (L&R21.50) FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING TAX ABATEMENT FOR THE SHELTER FOR THE HOMELESS, INC. FOR PROPERTY ON PACIFIC STREET. Requested by Leslie F. Furst, President, Shelter for the Homeless, Inc., P. O. Box 15557 Park Square Station, Stamford, CT 06901, 9/28/90. Held in Committee 11/7/90. Approved for publication 12/3/90.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA with one no vote, Mrs. Perillo and one abstention. Mrs. Maihock.

 (L&R21.31) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE STAMFORD COLISEUM AUTHORITY. Requested by Rep. James Rubino, R-7, 5/16/90. Held in Committee 6/4, 7/9, 11/7 and 12/3/90. Held on Pending 7/24/90.

# HELD IN COMMITTEE

6. (L&R21.55) PROPOSED RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF CITY LEASED PROPERTY FROM THE STAMFORD AMBULANCE CORPS, INC. TO THE STAMFORD EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, INC. Per E.M.S. Systems Contract and Funding Request submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 10/1/90. Board of Finance approved 11/8/90. Held in Committee 12/3/90. Returned to Committee at Special Meeting 12/12/90.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

# LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

7. (L&R21.56) PROPOSED RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF EQUIPMENT (TWO FORD VAN-TYPE AMBULANCES WITH ANCILLARY EQUIPMENT) FROM THE STAMFORD FIRE DEPARTMENT TO THE STAMFORD EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES. Per E.M.S. Systems Contract and Funding Request submitted by Mayor Thom Serrani, 10/1/90. Board of Finance approved 11/8/90. Held in Committee 12/3/90. Returned to Committee at Special Meeting 12/12/90.

#### HELD IN COMMITTEE

 (L&R21.61) FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING TIME LIMITATIONS OF THE BOARD OF ETHICS. Submitted by Mary Sommer, Corporation Counsel, 12/12/90.

### HELD IN COMMITTEE

<u>MR, MARTIN</u> Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approved item 4 on the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with one no vote, Mrs. Perillo and one abstention, Mrs. Maihock.

### <u>PERSONNEL COMMITTEE</u> - Scott Morris, Chairman

<u>MR. MORRIS</u> said the Personnel Committee met on Wednesday, December 19, 1990, at 7:00 p.m. Committee members present were Scott Morris, Philip Stork, Michael Larobina and David Jachimczyk; excused were Reps. Blum, Hogan, Nanos and Zelinsky. Also present at the meeting were Reps. DeLuca, Perillo, and Zimmerman and Richard Robinson, Asst. Corporation Counsel.

 FOR PUBLICATION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE PROHIBITING DISCRIMINATION IN THE CLASSIFIED AND UNCLASSIFIED CIVIL SERVICE. Submitted by Sim Bernstein, Personnel Director, 8/29/90. Held in Committee 10/1 and 12/3/90. Held in Steering 10/17/90.

<u>HELD IN COMMITTEE</u> (due to lack of a quorum for voting)

2. REVIEW THE POLICY AND PROCEDURES REGARDING THE HIRING OF PROVISIONAL EMPLOYEES. Submitted by Rep. Robert DeLuca, R-14, 11/29/90.

#### HELD IN COMMITTEE

MR. MORRIS stated that for clarification purposes, Section C-735 of the Charter covers provisional appointments. He said the rules provide for provisional employment without examination with the consent of the director in case of emergency and pending appointment from an eligible list. Mr. Morris said there were questions raised by members of the Committee, Reps. DeLuca and Zimmerman. Mr. Morris said the questions and concerns will be in a letter from the Committee to the Director of Personnel. Mr. Morris stated that the Director was invited to the Committee meeting but was unable to attend. Mr. Morris said that some of the questions to be included in the letter would be what criteria does the director use in making appointments for provisional employment; what situation might constitute an emergency whereby the director has to go out to hire someone without an examination and what results when the personnel process is not completed; that is, the hiring process is not completed when the term for provisional employment runs out at the end of three months? PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE - David Jachimczyk, Chairman - No report.

PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER COMMITTEE - Peter Nanos, Chairman - No report.

HEALTH & PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Ruth Powers, Chairwoman

<u>MS. POWERS</u> said the Health and Protection Committee met on Thursday, January 3, 1991, at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Ellen Mellis, Ellen Bromley, Judith Evanko, James Rubino, Joseph Lovallo and Ruth Powers. Ms. Powers said a public hearing was held on item 1.

 FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 242 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES CONCERNING WEAPONS. Submitted by Rep. Ruth Powers, D-8, 11/14/90. Approved for publication 12/3/90.

<u>MS. POWERS</u> said that many people attended the public hearing on item one and there were about 12 speakers. Ms. Powers stated that at this point, the Committee adjourned to take part in the Special Meeting of the Board of Representatives. Following the Board meeting, the Committee reconvened. She said the Committee voted 6-0-0 in favor of final adoption of the proposed ordinance and Moved for approval. Seconded.

<u>MR. BLUM</u> said that a few years back, an ordinance was approved concerning shooting in and around Cove Island. He asked if there was any difference in the present proposed ordinance?

<u>MS. POWERS</u> stated that she was not sure whether an ordinance was approved. She said the previous one involved Holly Pond and the present proposed ordinance specifically involves Cove Island and the Wallack's Point area.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve for final adoption proposed ordinance amending chapter 242 of the Code concerning weapons. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

<u>MS. POWERS</u> stated that a speaker at the public hearing expressed concern that at low tide, there was a great deal of debris such as batteries, boat engines, car engines in the area of Cove Island Park near the Mean high tide level. Ms. Powers asked that the President of the Board send a letter to Director Neu apprising Mr. Neu of the matter and if something could not be done to rectify the matter.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN stated that a letter will be sent to Mr. Neu.

PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE - Robert DeLuca & Thomas Pia, Co-Chairpersons

<u>MR. PIA</u> said the Parks and Recreation Committee met on Wednesday, December 19, 1990, at 7:30 p.m. Committee members attending were Gerald Rybnick, Robert DeLuca, Mildred Perillo, Michael Fedele and Thomas Pia; also present was Parks & Recreation Director Robert Neu and Commissioner Michael Saccardi, John Roman of WSTC and Bob Moore, a newspaper reporter.

 PROPOSED REVISIONS TO REQUEST FORM CONCERNING BANNER HANGINGS. Submitted by Rep. Robert DeLuca, Chairman, Parks & Recreation Committee, 10/10/90. Returned to Committee 11/7/90. Held in Committee 12/3/90.

# PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE: (continued)

<u>MR. PIA</u> said the Committee discussed item 1 and recommended that the Board abolish the hanging of banners on city streets. Moved and Seconded.

Mr. Pia stated that the Committee members voted against the hanging of the banners in view of the present economic conditions. The Committee felt the money could better serve the citizens if spent elsewhere; such as partial funding for salaries for new positions, for rehiring terminated employees or for saving someone's job this year.

Mr. Pia said the cost of hanging a banner is \$458.00 for two men plus \$100 for the truck. Mr. Pia said that in 1989, 25 banners were hung at \$558 costing \$13,950; in 1990, 22 banners were hung at \$558 costing \$12,275. Mr. Pia. said that in the coming year, if the police decide that it is in the best interest of the city to have police directing traffic while the men are hanging the banners, the cost may be an additional \$108 for the police for a minimum of four hours. Mr. Pia said the total cost of hanging a banner would be \$666; if 25 banners were hung, the cost would be over \$16,000. Mr. Pia stated the Committee thought the money could be used for rehiring or new positions.

<u>MR. ZELINSKY</u> said he partially agreed with Mr. Pia on the Committee's recommendation but he had concerns. He said he did not believe the item was properly before the Board this evening inasmuch as the item on the Agenda states, "A proposed revision to request form concerning banner hangings." Mr. Zelinsky stated that the discussion now is on the repeal of an existing ordinance. He said to repeal the ordinance would require publication and a public hearing. Mr. Zelinsky said the cost of hanging the banners for the non-profit organizations should not be paid by the city and a solution might be made rather than deleting the ordinance completely, it should be required regardless of the non-profit status of groups, that they pay the total cost of hanging the banners. Mr. Zelinsky said in this way, the city could recoup the costs.

Mr. Zelinsky Moved that the item be returned to Committee. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to return to Committee item 1 concerning the hanging of banners. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

 FOR APPROVAL PROPOSED MARINA FEES FOR 1991. Approved by the Parks and Recreation Commission 12/5/90. Submitted by Robert Neu, Director, Parks and Recreation Department, 12/7/90.

MR. PIA said that all members received a copy of the proposed fees.

<u>MR. ZELINSKY</u> questioned "Dockside moorings over 17'". He said the fees in 1990 were \$185.00 and the second item "Dockside mooring over 17' (max. 22')" has in 1990, a fee of \$225.00. Mr. Zelinsky asked for clarification on these items.

<u>MR. PIA</u> stated that there were two moorings; one to 17' and the other from 17' to 22'.

<u>MR. ZELINSKY</u> said his other question was regarding, "Launching Ramp fees: West Beach." Mr. Zelinsky asked what was the rationale for the breakdown for "City resident (season) and (daily); Connecticut resident (season) and (daily) and Out of State resident (season) and (daily)?" He asked if there was a dollar amount or a percentage increase?

### PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE: (continued)

<u>MR. PIA</u> said the increase was a across-the-board increase this year to bring the fees up-to-date to a more realistic figures than we had in the past. Mr. Pia stated that with the new increases, the organization will be self-supporting.

<u>MR. ZELINSKY</u> said that city residents seasonal rates have gone from \$20 to \$30, a 50% increase but the same increase does not hold for Connecticut residents or out-of-state residents. He Moved to raise Connecticut resident (season) from the proposed \$150 to \$212. The motion was Seconded.

<u>MR. DeLUCA</u> urged his colleagues to vote against the proposed increase. He said that there were only two or three permits issued for the year. He said the 50% increase for city residents is for user fees to meet operating expenses. Mr. DeLuca stated that the increases are also to recoup costs for capital improvements. Mr. DeLuca stated that many Board members spoke regarding fiscal restraints, and now is the time to recoup some monies. Mr. DeLuca stated that the fees are not out-of-line considering the service that is provided.

<u>MR, LYONS</u> agreed with Mr. DeLuca's remarks. He said that Mr. Neu and the Parks and Recreation Commission worked on the fees and they know where they are. Mr. Lyons said the fees should be supported as presented.

MRS. PERILLO Moved the question. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to amend the fee schedule by increasing Cosnnecticut resident season from \$150 to \$212. DEFEATED by a voice vote.

MR. PIA Moved for approval of the Marina fees as presented. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve the fees. APPROVED by voice vote with one no vote, Mr. White.

EDUCATION. WELFARE & GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - John R. Zelinsky, Chairman No report.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Frank Mollo, Chairman

<u>MS. SUMMERVILLE</u> said a public hearing was held for Community Development funding. She said a meeting will be held next month to approve the funding if a meeting can be arranged with the Mayor.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - Annie M. Summerville, Chairwoman - No report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Stanley Esposito, Chairman

<u>MR. ESPOSITO</u> said the Environmental Protection Committee met on Thursday, December 20, 1990 at 7:00 p.m. Attending were Stanley Esposito, John Zimmerman, Philip Stork, and Dennis White; Peter Dombrowski, Director of Environmental Health of the Health Department and Phyliss Erlandson of the Health Department.

 REVIEW OF CONTINUED EXCESS USE OF SALT ON CITY STREETS IN COMPARISON TO STATE OF CONNECTICUT'S SALT-SAND MIX AND CITY POLICY NOT TO PLOW UNTIL THERE IS 3-INCH ACCUMULATION OF SNOW. Submitted by Rep. Audrey Maihock, R-19, 9/28/90. Held in Committee 11/7/90. Report made and Held in Committee 12/3/90.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE: (continued)

<u>MR. ESPOSITO</u> said the Committee voted three in favor with one opposed supporting a Sense-of-the-Board Resolution asking the Public Works Department to use the least amount of salt possible to make the streets safe and passable. Mr. Esposito Moved for approval. Seconded.

Mr. Esposito said the resolution would ask the Administration to direct the Department of Public Works to use the least amount of salt necessasry to remove snow is the city. He said the resolution was flexible and allows the department to use judgement based on the development of each storm. Mr. Esposito stated that it states that snow removal in different areas of the city must be dealt with differently and states that a heavy sand, light salt mix be used whenever and wherever safe and practical. Mr. Esposito stated that it also asks that the Department of Public Works be aware of environmental sensitive areas like watershed areas and shallow subterranean aquifers.

<u>MR. ZIMMERMAN</u> said that in his opinion, the purpose of the resolution would best be served by a letter from the Committee stating that the policy on salt and sand should be review by the Public Works Department.

Mr. Zimmerman Moved to return the item to Committee. Seconded.

<u>MR. ESPOSITO</u> said that for many years, he has experienced that if the Board wished its feelings known on an issue, the vehicle used was a Sense-of-the-Board Resolution rather than a letter. He said that any member of the Board, as a private citizens, could send a letter to the Mayor. He said that voting on the resolution does not preclude anyone from doing so, therefore, he said he would not like the item be returned to Committee.

PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN proceeded to a vote. APPROVED by voice vote.

 MATTER OF TESTING GROUND WATER AND WELL WATER IN THE AREA OF THE SCOFIELDTOWN LANDFILL. Submitted by Rep. Stanley Esposito, R-11, 11/14/90. Held in Committee 12/3/90.

### HELD IN COMMITTEE

<u>MR. ESPOSITO</u> said the Committee asked the Health Department to pursue a regular schedule of water testing in the area of the site based on the appearance of 50-gallon drums that worked their way out of the landfill; this occurred sometime ago. Mr. Esposito stated that it was hoped that the State would help with the cost of the water tests. He said the Health Department reported that the State feels that the owner of the landfill site is completely responsible for the care and maintenance. Mr. Esposito said that in this case, the City owns the site. He said the State feels at this time, that no danger exists regarding leachate from the site, and the city must bear the entire cost of the water testing at the location.

Mr. Esposito said that the objective of the testing would be for early detection of any leachate from the site that could possibly contaminate nearby wells. He said that in order to accomplish the testing, it was suggested that tests of surface and ground water be conducted at a number of different locations in a buffer area surrounding the site approximately twice a year.

### ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE: (continued)

<u>MR. ESPOSITO</u> said the Health Department with an eye on the costs of such testing has enlisted the aid of the Connecticut Agricultural Experiment Station; a highly respected research facility which has offered to test the samples of the water collected by the Health Department at no charge.

Mr. Esposito also stated that the State of Connecticut has offered to help identify the best locations and depths for water testing in the buffer area. He said the Health Department indicated that the only other cost to consider may be those associated with the possible suggestion by the State that one or two wells might have to be drilled into bedrock; this can be costly but is a one-time expense; shallow wells can be dug for little or no money.

Mr. Esposito said if contaminated leachate was detected, area homeowners would be warned and those homes with wells threatened by any possible contamination could be serviced by the city water system which ends just south of the landfill site.

Mr. Esposito stated that the Health Department plans to meet with representatives of the State Department of Environmental Protection within one week and the results of the upcoming meeting will be shared with members of the Environmental Protection Committee at the next meeting.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - Mary Lou Rinaldi, Chairwoman - No report.

# SPECIAL COMMITTEES

HOUSE COMMITTEE - Gerald Rybnick, Chairman - No report.

COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE - David Blum, Chairman - No report.

LABOR\_RELATIONS COMMITTEE - John J. Hogan, Chairman

 APPROVAL OF ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STAMFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION AND THE STAMFORD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION 7/1/89 TO 6/30/92. Contract approved 6/5/89. Addendum is re-opener for third year salary increases; proposed increase is 5%. Submitted by Gerald Pia, President, Stamford Board of Education, P. O. Box 9310, Stamford, CT 06904, 12/7/90. Action must be taken within 30 days from 12/7/90.

A Special Board meeting was held to consider the item on Wednesday, January 2, 1991; the item was approved.

#### RESOLUTIONS

 SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION OPPOSING CONNECTICUT LIGHT AND POWER COMPANY'S PROPOSED 11.5% INCREASE NEXT YEAR. Submitted by Rep. John R. Zelinsky, D-11, 12/12/90.

# RESOLUTIONS: (continued)

MR. ZELINSKY Moved for approval of the resolution. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> called for a vote to approve the resolution. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

# MINUTES

1. NOVEMBER 7, 1990 REGULAR BOARD MEETING - Held.

2. DECEMBER 3, 1990 REGULAR BOARD MEETING - Held.

3. DECEMBER 12, 1990 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING - Held.

COMMUNICATIONS - None.

OLD BUSINESS - None.

NEW BUSINESS - None.

<u>PRESIDENT GOLDSTEIN</u> thanked Marge Cocolis for the excellent job she did this evening.

<u>ADJOURNMENT</u> - There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 10:15 p.m. after the motion to adjourn was made, seconded and approved.

The record will note that Anne Kachaluba, Administrative Assistant was not present at this meeting.

Kachalul

Anne A. Kachaluba, Administrative Assistant and Recording Secretary 21st Board of Representatives

**APPROVED:** 

Sandra Goldstein, President 21st Board of Representatives

SG:ak Enclosures MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING - MONDAY, JANUARY 7, 1991

TAMVOTE - ATTENDANCE

20.

10		NAME	1	NO	-		NAME
		EVANKO, JUDITH					DE PINA, GLORIA
		NAKIAN, MARIA		÷.'	22	PRS	DOMONKOS, CARMEN
		PIA, THOMAS	1000				CLEMMONS, GARY
4	PRS	OWENS, BOBBY		1	24	PRS	NANOS, PETER
		MC GRATH, PATRICIA	· · ·		25	PRS	PERILLO, MILDRED
		LYONS, RICHARD	, <u>1</u> = ""				
7	PRS	ZIMMERMAN, JOHN	. * . <del>*</del> .		27	N/P	PAVIA, NICHOLAS MITCHELL, ELAINE
8	PRS	RYBNICK, GERALD		S	28	PRS	CARDILLO, DOMINICK
9	N/P	MOLLO, FRANK	1 <b>m</b> a g				MORRIS, SCOTT
		LOVALLO, JOSEPH	Bar		30	N/P	HOGAN, JOHN J.
LI	PRS	MAIHOCK, AUDREY			31	PRS	ZELINSKY, JOHN
L2	PRS	MARTIN, DAVID			32	PRS	BROMLEY, ELLEN
L3	PRS	DE LUCA, ROBERT			33	PRS	LAROBINA, MICHAEL
L4	PRS	ESPOSITO, STANLEY			34	PRS	POWERS, RUTH
L5	PRS	STORK, PHILIP			35	PRS	BLUM, DAVID
L6	PRS	FEDELE, MICHAEL					JACHIMCZYK, DAVID
		RUBINO, JAMES	-		37	PRS	RINALDI, MARY LOU
L8	PRS	MELLIS, ELLEN		4	38	PRS	JOHNSON, FRED
		WHITE, W. DENNIS					BOCCUZZI, JOHN
		SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE		×			GOLDSTEIN, SANDRA
111			1.14		7.4.		
						_	

NOT PRESENT 6

PRESENT 34

01-07-1991

STAMVOTE - VOTE PROCESSING

TEST VOTE YES NO NAME 10 NAME NO NAME 21 YES DE PINA, GLORIA 22 YES DOMONKOS, CARMEN 23 YES CLEMMONS, GARY 24 YES NANOS, PETER 25 YES PERILLO, MILDRED 26 YES PAVIA, NICHOLAS 27 N/P MITCHELL, ELAINE 28 YES CARDILLO, DOMINICK 29 YES MORRIS, SCOTT 30 N/P HOGAN, JOHN J. 31 YES ZELINSKY, JOHN 1 N/P EVANKO, JUDITH 2 YES NAKIAN, MARIA 3 YES PIA, THOMAS 4 YES OWENS, BOBBY 5 N/P MC GRATH, PATRICIA 6 YES LYONS, RICHARD 7 YES ZIMMERMAN, JOHN 8 YES RYBNICK, GERALD 9 N/P MOLLO, FRANK 10 YES LOVALLO, JOSEPH 11 YES MAIHOCK, AUDREY 31 YES ZELINSKY, JOHN 12 YES MARTIN, DAVID 32 YES BROMLEY, ELLEN 13 YES DE LUCA, ROBERT 14 YES ESPOSITO, STANLEY 33 YES LAROBINA, MICHAEL 33 YES LAROBINA, MICHAEL 34 YES POWERS, RUTH 35 YES BLUM, DAVID 36 N/P JACHIMCZYK, DAVID 37 YES RINALDI, MARY LOU 38 YES JOHNSON, FRED 39 YES BOCCUZZI, JOHN 40 YES GOLDSTEIN, SANDRA YES 34 NO 0 A 15 YES STORK, PHILIP 16 YES FEDELE, MICHAEL 17 YES RUBINO, JAMES 18 YES MELLIS, ELLEN 19 YES WHITE, W. DENNIS 20 YES SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE N/P 6 N/V 0 ABS 0

20.

21:00:13

20:57:25 01-07-1991